
Committee: LICENSING REGULATORY COMMITTEE

Date: THURSDAY, 21 MARCH 2019

Venue: LANCASTER TOWN HALL

Time: 1.00 P.M.

A G E N D A

1. Apologies for Absence 

2. Minutes 

Minutes of the meeting held on 7 February 2019 (previously circulated).  

3. Items of Urgent Business authorised by the Chairman 

4. Declarations of Interest 

To receive declarations by Members of interests in respect of items on this Agenda.  

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the Localism Act 2011, they are required 
to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests, which have not already been declared in 
the Council’s Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal offence not to declare a disclosable 
pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting.)  

Whilst not a legal requirement, in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 9 and in the 
interests of clarity and transparency, Members should declare any disclosable pecuniary 
interests, which they have already declared in the Register, at this point in the meeting.  

In accordance with Part B, Section 2 of the Code of Conduct, Members are required to 
declare the existence and nature of any other interests as defined in paragraphs 8(1) or 
9(2) of the Code of Conduct.  

Matter for Decision

5. Proposed Licensing Fees 2019/20 (Pages 1 - 8)

Report of the Licensing Manager

ADMINISTRATIVE ARRANGEMENTS

(i) Membership

Councillors Colin Hartley (Chairman), Terrie Metcalfe (Vice-Chairman), Susie Charles, 
Ian Clift, Mel Guilding, Tim Hamilton-Cox, Janice Hanson, Joan Jackson and 
Robert Redfern



(ii) Substitute Membership

Councillors Claire Cozler, Rebecca Novell, Jean Parr, Sylvia Rogerson and John Wild

(iii) Queries regarding this Agenda

Please contact Jane Glenton, Democratic Services - telephone (01524) 582068, or email 
jglenton@lancaster.gov.uk.

(iv) Changes to Membership, substitutions or apologies

Please contact Democratic Support, telephone (01524) 582170, or email 
democraticsupport@lancaster.gov.uk. 

SUSAN PARSONAGE,
CHIEF EXECUTIVE,
TOWN HALL,
DALTON SQUARE,
LANCASTER, LA1 1PJ

Published on Tuesday, 12 March 2019.  

mailto:democraticsupport@lancaster.gov.uk


LICENSING REGULATORY COMMITTEE

Proposed Licensing Fees 2019/20
21st March 2019

Report of the Licensing Manager 

PURPOSE OF REPORT

The report provides detailed budget information for the Licensing services and sets out 
proposed fee levels to enable Members to consider setting fees for 2019/20.

This report is public. 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

That the licensing fees for Taxi, Private Hire and Miscellaneous licences be determined for 
2019/20 on consideration of the information and options contained in this report.

1.0 Introduction

1.1 This report is concerned with the setting of licence fees for the following licences:

 Driver, Vehicle and Operator Licences (Taxi and Private Hire)
 Transfer of Ownership and Change of Vehicle Licences
 Scrap Metal Dealers (Mobile and Site)
 Street Cafes
 Skin Piercing Registration (Personal and Premises)
 Sexual Entertainment Venues
 Sex Shops
 Boatman and Pleasure boats
 Second-hand goods dealer/Market trader

The setting of such fees is a non-executive function and is therefore a matter for this 
Committee.

1.2 Licensing fees for taxi/private hire and miscellaneous licensing are considered and 
set under the following legislation;

 Local Government Miscellaneous Provision Act 1976
 Local Government Miscellaneous Provision Act 1982
 Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013
 Highways Act 1980
 County of Lancashire Act 1984

Page 1 Agenda Item 5



 Public Health Acts amended Act 1907

2.0 Setting Fees 

2.1 The Council’s Fees & Charges Policy states that when setting discretionary charges, 
the general aim is to cover the cost of the service, accurately reflecting the full cost of 
provision including recharges. However, fees must be reasonable and proportionate. 
The fees and charges policy in relation to licensing fees offers a standard of good
practice, although it is not legally binding on Licensing Regulatory Committee.

 
2.2    It is also a requirement of the Council’s Fees & Charges Policy that fees be reviewed

annually to ensure that costs are appropriately recovered.  It is not lawful however, 
for the council to seek to make a profit from licence fees that are within its discretion.

3.0 Method of Fee Construction

3.1 As set out in last year’s report, a full review of the current fee-setting framework has 
been undertaken by the Licensing Manager and Finance Officer, including, time 
monitoring exercises, scrutiny of previous year’s data and analysis of potential 
anomalies in projected figures.

3.2 An updated list of licence fees which reflect the review is attached at Appendix A.  
Also included is the projected fees should members prefer applying the current rate 
of inflation 2.1% (2019/20 RPI) to current fees.

4.0 The Legal Position

4.1 Traditionally the fees charged for licences have included the costs of the 
administration and issue of the licence, the costs of monitoring compliance, and the 
costs of enforcing against those unlicensed and licensed. 

However, the case of Hemmings v Westminster City Council has clarified the costs 
that local authorities can include when setting licence fees. Local Authorities can no 
longer reflect costs of addressing unlicensed business activity when setting fees.

Taxi and Private Hire Licences

4.2 The power to charge a fee for a driver’s licence (both Hackney Carriage and Private 
Hire) is found in section 53(2) of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) 
Act 1976, which provides that:

 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Act of 1847, a district council may 
demand and recover for the grant to any person of a licence to drive a hackney 
carriage, or a private hire vehicle, as the case may be, such a fee as they 
consider reasonable with a view to recovering the costs of issue and 
administration and may remit the whole or part of the fee in respect of a private 
hire vehicle in any case in which they think it appropriate to do so.

4.3 Therefore the fee must reflect the costs for the administration and issue of hackney 
carriage or private hire drivers licences.

Page 2



4.4 The power to levy a fee for vehicle and operator’s is contained within s.70:

 Subject to the provisions of subsection (2) of this section, a district council may 
charge such fees for the grant of vehicle and operators' licences as may be resolved 
by them from time to time and as may be sufficient in the aggregate to cover in whole 
or in part—

(a)     the reasonable cost of the carrying out by or on behalf of the district council of 
inspections of hackney carriages and private hire vehicles for the purpose of 
determining whether any such licence should be granted or renewed;

(b)    the reasonable cost of providing hackney carriage stands; and

(c)    any reasonable administrative or other costs in connection with the foregoing 
and with the control and supervision of hackney carriages and private hire vehicles.

Therefore, the fee must reflect the costs of providing hackney carriage stands, 
control and supervision of licensed vehicles operating in the district, carrying out 
vehicle inspections and the administration and issue of hackney carriage or private 
hire vehicle and operator licences.

4.5 A licensing authority is entitled to set either the same or different fee levels for 
different types of applications: i.e. grant, renewal, variation, alteration or transfer. 

5.0 Budget analysis

5.1 The net costs for the Licensing function covering hackney carriages, private hire 
vehicles and miscellaneous licenses for the years 2018/19 (outturn) and 2019/20 
(projected outturn) are set out in the table below. The analysis also contains an 
updated projection for future years up to 2021/22. 

5.2 Members will recall that whilst fee charging is designed to recover costs of 
administration and management of the Licensing function, full cost recovery was not 
achievable under the old framework. This was because not all licences are charged 
for and the Council is limited to recover the costs for those licenses that do attract a 
fee. A proportionate deficit is therefore expected.

Page 3



BREAKDOWN OF COSTS FOR THE LICENSING FUNCTION

Hackney Carriage/Private Hire
2017/18 
Actual

2018/19 
Forecast

2019/20 
Forecast

2020/21 
Forecast

2021/22 
Forecast

Central Overhead 152,600 146,600 156,700 165,800 170,800
Other Direct Costs 50,200 49,600 57,600 50,500 51,600
Licence Income -135,200 -126,600 -114,300 -144,500 -135,400
Other Income -47,600 -47,600 -56,600 -49,500 -50,400
Deficit 20,000 22,000 43,400 22,300 36,600
Less Non-Recoverable costs -16,000 -16,200 -16,400 -16,600 -16,800
Revised Deficit/(Surplus) 4,000 5,800 27,000 5,700 19,800
Average Revised Deficit 12,460

Miscellaneous Licences
2017/18 
Actual

2018/19 
Forecast

2019/20 
Forecast

2020/21 
forecast

2021/22 
Forecast

Central Overhead 22,200 21,300 22,800 24,100 24,900
Licence Income -12,100 -9,300 -14,000 -10,700 -9,800
Deficit 10,100 12,000 8,800 13,400 15,100
Average Deficit 11,880

6.0 Options

The options available to members are:

i. To maintain current fees and charges

ii. To amend to reflect the review of fees and charges by the Licensing Manager 
and Finance Officer to allow for full cost recovery, or;

iii. Apply the current rate of RPI to determine new fees and charges for 2019/20.

7.0 Conclusions

7.1 The analysis of the budget carried out by the Licensing Manager, in conjunction with 
the Finance Officer, indicates that the proposed fees will continue to allow for full cost 
recovery where permissible. 

7.2 Members are recommended to set the fees for hackney carriage, private hire and 
miscellaneous licences for 2019/20, in accordance with the statutory provisions on 
licence fees. 

7.3 Should members decide to introduce a different fee structure then this will need to be 
proposed and agreed. 

Page 4



CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural 
Proofing)
None.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
Financial Services have been consulted and assisted the Licensing Manager in the 
preparation of the report. For information, the 2019/20 budget was agreed at Budget Council 
on 27th February 2019, i.e. before the review was concluded and as a result has been set at 
£3,200 higher than the figures shown in the main body of the report.  The fee income for the 
current year will be reviewed as part of the closure of accounts and the Council’s usual 
monitoring arrangements with any significant variances being reported as appropriate.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
Legal Services have been consulted and have no adverse comments to make regarding the 
content of the report.

BACKGROUND PAPERS
None

Contact Officer:  Jennifer Curtis
Telephone:  01524 582732
E-mail: jcurtis@lancaster.gov.uk
Ref: 

Page 5



Appendix A
Taxi and Private Hire Licence Fees - Options

  

Type of Licence 2016/2017/2018 
Fee

2019/2020
Fee (Review)

RPI Increase
(2.1%)

Dual Driver’s Licence Renewal (annual) 120.00 119.00 123.00
HC Driver’s Licence Renewal (annual) 120.00 119.00 123.00
PH Driver’s Licence Renewal (annual) 120.00 119.00 123.00
Dual Driver's Licence Renewal (3 yearly) 221.00 237.00 226.00
HC Driver's Licence Renewal (3 yearly) 221.00 237.00 226.00
PH Driver's Licence Renewal (3 yearly) 221.00 237.00 226.00
Dual Driver’s Licence New (annual) 191.00 146.00 195.00
HC Driver’s Licence New (annual) 191.00 146.00 195.00
PH Driver’s Licence New (annual) 191.00 146.00 195.00
Dual Driver’s Licence New (3 yearly) 292.00 264.00 298.00
HC Driver’s Licence New (3 yearly) 292.00 264.00 298.00
PH Driver’s Licence New (3 yearly) 292.00 264.00 298.00
Enhanced CRB Check (Fee set by CRB) 44.00 44.00 44.00
Online Driver Licence Check 5.90 5.90 5.90
Duplicate Driver’s Badge 11.75 12.00 12.00
Hackney Carriage Vehicle Test Fee 53.00 53.00 53.00

Hackney Carriage Licence (annual) 245.00 219.00 250.00

Hackney Carriage Licence (6 monthly) 123.00 110.00 126.00

Hackney Carriage Licence (4 monthly) 82.00 73.00 84.00

Licence Plate  - Hackney Carriage (each) 6.40 6.40 6.40

Door Sign -  Hackney Carriage (each) 6.40 6.40 6.40

Private Hire Vehicle Test Fee 53.00 53.00 53.00

Private Hire Vehicle Licence (annual) 189.00 150.00 193.00

Private Hire Vehicle licence (6 monthly) 95.00 75.00 97.00

Private Hire Vehicle Licence (4 monthly) 63.00 50.00 64.00

Licence Plate  - Private Hire (each) 6.40 6.40 6.40

Door Sign -  Private Hire (each) 6.40 6.40 6.40

Change of Vehicle New Fee 52.00 New Fee

Transfer of Ownership New Fee 34.00 New Fee

Administration Fee 42.00 34.00 43.00

Private Hire Operators Licence Annual/5 Year Annual/5 Year Annual/5 Year

1 Vehicle 134.00/419.00 125.00/536.00 137.00/428.00

2-10 Vehicles 155.00/523.00 171.00/664.00 158.00/534.00

11-25 Vehicles 190.00/697.00 225.00/887.00 194.00/712.00

26 Vehicles and over 263.00/1064.00 313.00/1275.00 269.00/1086.00

Page 6



Miscellaneous Licence Fees - Options

Type of Licence 2016/2017/2018 
Fee

2019/2020 
Fee 

(Review)

RPI 
Increase

(2.1%)
Boatman's Licence 55.00 65.00 56.00
Scrap Metal Dealers Mobile Licence (3 yearly) 157.60 233.00 160.60
Scrap Metal Dealer Site Licence (3 yearly) 260.00 365.00 265.00
Pleasure Boat Licence 100.00 139.00 102.00
Registration in Skin Piercing/Tattooing (Persons) 77.00 111.00 79.00
Registration in Skin Piercing/Tattooing (Premises) 169.00 161.00 173.00
Registration of dealer in second-hand goods 169.00 49.00 173.00
Registration of dealer in second-hand goods - 
market stalls

51.00 49.00 52.00

Sex Shop 541.00 175.00 552.00
Sex Shop renewal 541.00 175.00 552.00
Sexual Entertainment Venue 5654.00 313.00 5773.00
Street Café Licence 282.00 158.00 288.00

Page 7


	Agenda
	5 Proposed Licensing Fees 2019/20
	Fees 2019.20


